
 

Feasibility Study for Wastewater Management Approaches for Kosovo 
Communities Outside Existing and Planned Centralized Systems 

 
Request for Proposal: 2026-002 

 
QUESTION & ANSWERS N°1 

23 February 2026 
 
Q1. In the Description of Requirements (Point 18), Financial Standing is indicated as “Not Required.” 
Annex 4 (Qualification Form) includes a checkbox referring to the attachment of audited financial 
statements. We would appreciate clarification on the following: 
 

• Given that Financial Standing is marked as “Not Required,” are bidders required to submit 
audited financial statements, or is submission of officially filed annual financial statements 
sufficient? 

• In case audited statements are required, would this requirement apply to each consortium 
member individually? 

• Under the applicable legislation in some countries, small and micro entities are not subject 
to mandatory statutory audit unless they exceed legally defined size thresholds (based on 
revenue, total assets, and number of employees). Entities below these thresholds are 
required to prepare and officially file annual financial statements but are not legally 

• We kindly request confirmation that submission of officially filed annual financial 
statements, without statutory audit, would be acceptable under this procurement 
procedure. 

A1. We confirm that an audited financial statement is not required under this RFP. Submission of 
annual financial statements without a statutory audit will suffice.  
 
Q2. Are professionals currently employed by the Water Services Regulatory Authority; and/or Regional 
Water Companies may be proposed as a Key Experts under this assignment? If such participation is 
acceptable, we kindly request clarification on any specific conditions, limitations, or procedural 
requirements that would apply in order for such engagement to be considered acceptable under this 
procurement procedure. 

A2. As a general rule, civil servants, employees of regulatory authorities, and staff of public institutions 
that have a formal mandate, regulatory role, or oversight responsibility related to the subject matter of 
the assignment are not eligible to be engaged as Key Experts under this procurement procedure, either 
individually or through a legal entity. 

This limitation applies in particular where such individuals may have actual, potential, or perceived 
conflicts of interest, including situations where they: 

• exercise regulatory, supervisory, or decision-making authority over the sector concerned; 
• represent institutions that are key stakeholders in the assignment; or 
• could influence, or be perceived to influence, the scope, findings, conclusions, or 

recommendations of the study in their institutional capacity. 

Accordingly, professionals currently employed by the Water Services Regulatory Authority and/or 
Regional Water Companies are considered key sector stakeholders and, due to their institutional 
roles, are not eligible to be proposed as Key Experts under this assignment. 

This restriction is without prejudice to the possibility of such institutions being consulted as 
stakeholders during the implementation of the assignment, in line with good practice and the 
objectives of the study. 
 



Q3. Under Section 3.1 (Team Leader / Senior Wastewater Management Expert), in the row: “Proven 
leadership in managing multi-disciplinary teams and stakeholder coordination (at least 2 projects)” 
the scoring column states: 

• “Max 10 points for 2 projects” 
• “Max 15 projects for 3 or more projects” 

We assume that the second line should read: 

• “Max 15 points for 3 or more projects” rather than “15 projects.” 

 Kindly confirm that this is a typographical error and that the intended maximum score is 15 points. 

A3: Yes, we confirm that this is a typographical error. The line in question should read “Max 15 points 
for 3 or more projects,” as correctly noted above. 

Q4: In reference to point 5.2 of the RFP document, we seek clarification whether one (1) expert can be 
proposed for more than 1 role from the five (5) listed areas of expertise. 

A4: Yes, one expert may be proposed for more than one role, provided that s/he fully meets the 
minimum qualification requirements specified for each of the respective areas of expertise. In such 
cases, the Bidder shall ensure that a sufficient and realistic allocation of expert-days is proposed for 
each role and that the expert’s availability throughout the contract duration is adequately 
demonstrated. The proposed arrangement will be assessed as part of the technical evaluation.  

Q5: Can an extension of the submission deadline be approved?? 

A5: In order to encourage competition and allow prospective bidders to prepare high-quality 
proposals, the submission deadline is hereby extended until 23 March 2026 at 16:00. 


